








    

Y
U
B
A 
L
O
C
A
L 
C
O
M
M
I
S
S
I
O
N 

  
 
 
 

 
ACTION MINUTES 

YUBA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
    March 1, 2023 

 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

At 6:01 p.m. the Yuba County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) was called to order 
by the Chair, Commissioner Vasquez, with Commissioners Bradford,  Hudson, West and County 
Alternate Messick  present. Commissioner Atwal, City Alternate Commissioner Belza, and Public 
Member Alternate Pinney were absent. Also present were Executive Officer-John Benoit, Legal 
Counsel-Alexandra Jack and LAFCo Deputy Executive Officer-Paige Hensley.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 

Commissioner Vasquez led the commission in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3.       CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of meeting minutes from November 2, 2022  
 

Action:   Upon motion by Commissioner West and seconded by Commissioner Hudson, the 
commission voted unanimously to approve  the consent agenda with the following 4 to 0 vote:  
AYES:  Bradford, Hudson, Vasquez, and West; NOES: None; ABSTAIN:  None; ABSENT: 
Commissioner Atwal 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
    There were no public comments. 
  
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
  

A.  LAFCO 2022-0010/RD2103/RD817: A request from Reclamation District 2103 and 
Reclamation District 817 for a Sphere of Influence Amendment for both districts and an 
annexation of approximately 2719 acres into RD817, with concurrent detachment of 
approximately 2719 acres from RD2103, in which 613.27 acres are located in Sutter County, and 
2106.47 acres are located within Yuba County  
 

YUBA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
John Benoit, Executive Officer 
Paige Hensley, Clerk-Analyst 
David Ruderman, LAFCo Counsel 
915 8th Street, Suite 130           Phone:             (530)749-5467 
Marysville, CA 95901            Fax:                (530)749-5468
               Website:   www.yubalafco.org 
 



 2 

Staff Report: 

John Benoit presented the Executive Officers report. 

Public Hearing opened. 

There being no public comments the public hearing was closed. 

Action:  

1. Upon motion by Commissioner Hudson and seconded by Commissioner West the commission 
voted unanimously to adopt Resolution No. 2023-01 approving the Sphere of Influence 
Amendment, consisting of 2,719.74 Acres being removed from the Reclamation District 2103 
Sphere of Influence and annexed into Reclamation District 817s Sphere of Influence, with the 
following 4 to 0 vote:  AYES: Bradford, Hudson, West and Vasquez; NOES: None; ABSTAIN: 
None ABSENT: Atwal 
 

2. Upon motion by Commissioner Bradford and seconded by Commissioner Hudson the 
commission voted unanimously to adopt  Resolution No. 2023-02 approving the detachment of 
approximately 2,719 acres from Reclamation District 2103 and the annexation of approximately 
2,719 acres into Reclamation District 817. with the following 4 to 0 vote:  AYES: Bradford, 
Hudson, West and Vasquez; NOES: None; ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: Atwal 

(A reversal of LAFCO Commission decision for LAFCO 2020-0005)  

B. Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024: 

Staff Report: 

John Benoit presented the staff report. 

Public Hearing opened. 

There be no comments the public hearing was closed. 

Action: 

Upon motion by Commissioner West and seconded by Commissioner Hudson the commission 
voted unanimously to adopt  Resolution No. 2023-03 approving the proposed budget for fiscal 
with the following 4 to 0 vote:  AYES: Bradford, Hudson, West and Vasquez; NOES: None; 
ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: Atwal 

6. Action Items: 
 

A. Office Space Rental Contract Renewal: 
 
  
 



 3 

 Action: 

Upon motion by Commissioner Hudson and seconded by Commissioner Bradford the commission 
voted unanimously to approve and authorize the Executive Officer to sign the amended office space 
rental contract with the following 4 to 0 vote:  AYES: Bradford, Hudson, West and Vasquez; 
NOES: None; ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: Atwal 

7. Other Items: 
 

A. Workshop - Proposed Updated Yuba LAFCo Bylaws: 
 
John Benoit, Executive Officer, conducted a review of the proposed updated Yuba LAFCo 
Bylaws. 

 
B. AB 2449 Review By Legal Counsel: 
 

Alexandra Jack (Yuba LAFCo Counsel) gave a presentation explaining the AB 2449 
requirements. 

 
8. Executive Officers and Commissioners Reports: 
 
  Paige Hensley, Deputy Executive Officer updated the Commission on pending projects. 
 
  John Benoit, Executive Officer reminded the Commission to turn in their 700 forms by April 1st. 
 

John Benoit, Executive Officer Informed the Commission staff is working on a new Yuba LAFCo 
website. 

  
Commissioner West updated the Commission on the efforts underway for the City of Wheatland and 
OPUD to regionalize sewage treatment. Commissioner West also mentioned the City of Wheatland 
will be requesting a couple of annexations in the near future. 

 
9.  Adjourn: 
 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:52 p.m. to the next meeting on May 
3, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. in the Board of Supervisors Chamber, 915 8th Street, Marysville, and via a 
Zoom meeting. 

 
Approved, 

 
______________________________________ 
Andy Vasquez, Chair 

 
 
ATTEST:  JOHN BENOIT 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 

_____________________________________ 
By:  Paige Hensley, Deputy Executive Officer 





















AGENDA ITEM# 5 .B 

AGREEMENT FOR EXECUTIVE OFFICER SERVICES 
FOR THE YUBA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

AMENDMENT #2 

1. Contract Amendment. This Amendment #2, dated July l ,  2023, hereby amends
Exhibit B of the Agreement for Executive Officer Services for the Yuba County Local Agency 
Formation Commission dated June 13, 2007 and amended on May 1, 2019, for services to be 
performed by John Benoit in the contract position of Executive Officer. 

John Benoit 

Hourly Billing Rates 
as of July 1, 2023 

$115.28 per hour 

REIMBURSEMENT OF DIRECT EXPENSES 

LAFCO shall reimburse Contractor for the following direct expenses: 

Mileage: 

Photocopies: 

Office Supplies 

Postage: 

T elephone/intemet/F ax: 

IRS Rate 

Cost 

Cost 

Cost 

Cost 

2. Effective Date of Amendment. The Contractor's hourly rate as shown in this
Amendment #2 shall be effective July 1, 2023, and remain in force until modified or terminated as 
provided sections 6 and 8 of the Agreement for Executive Officer Services for the Yuba Local 
Agency Formation Commission, dated June 13, 2007. 

3. Other Agreements. Except as modified here, the Agreement for Executive Officer
Services for the Yuba County Local Agency Formation Commission, dated June 13, 2007, remains 
in full force and effect without modification. 

The signatures of the parties below indicate that each has read and understood the 
Agreement, as amended, and will abide by the terms stated herein. 

208906.2 

The parties have executed this Amendment #2 on the dates stated below. 

[ Signatures on following page] 

- I -



AGENDA ITEM# 5.B 

YUBA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

By:-----------
Andy Vasquez, Chair 

Dated: 
------------

Approved as to form: 

By: ___________ _ 
David J. Ruderman, Legal Counsel 

208906.2 

JOHN BENOIT, Contractor 

By: ___________ _ 
John Benoit 

Dated: 
------------

- 2 -



AGENDA ITEM# 5.C 

A MENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES FOR 

THE YUBA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

This Amendment to the Agreement for Legal Services ("Amendment") is made 

and entered into effective July 1, 2023 (the "Effective Date") by and between the Yuba 

Local Agency Formation District (the "Commission") and Colantuono, Highsmith & 

Whatley, PC, a California professional corporation ("Firm") with respect to the 

following Recitals: 

RECITALS 

A. The Commission approved a legal services agreement with Colantuono,

Highsmith & Whatley, PC for General Counsel services effective November 8, 2006 (the 

"Agreement"); and 

B. The Commission and Firm now wish to amend the Agreement by entering

into this Amendment to update rates and amend Exhibits A (Scope of Services and 

Applicable Billing Rates) and B (Compensation) to the Agreement effective July 1, 2023. 

NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and 

conditions contained herein and contained in the Agreement, the Commission and Firm 

agree as follows: 

1. The Recitals above are true and correct and fully incorporated herein.

2. Section 18 is hereby added to the Agreement to state:

Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be signed in one or 

more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which 

together shall be deemed one and the same instrument. The parties acknowledge 

and agree that this Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which 

shall be considered as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the 

same force and effect as an original signature. Without limitation, "electronic 

signature" shall include faxed or emailed versions of an original signature, 

electronically scanned and transmitted versions ( e.g., via pdf) of an original 

signature, or a digital signature. 

3. Exhibit A (Scope of Services and Applicable Billing Rates) to the

Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety with Exhibit A attached to this First 

Amendment. 

Amendment to Legal Services Agreement 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

Page 1 of 2 



AGENDA ITEM# 5.C 

4. Exhibit B (Non-Retainer Hourly Billing Rates) to the Agreement is hereby

replaced in its entirety with Exhibit B attached to this First Amendment. 

5. Except as expressly provided in this First Amendment, all other

provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Commission and Firm hereby execute this First 

Amendment, to be effective as of the Effective Date: 

II COMMISSION" 

Yuba Local Agency Formation Commission 

By: ____________ _ 
John Benoit, Executive Officer 

Date: 
-------------

ATTEST: 

Paige Hensley, Deputy Executive Officer/Clerk 

Amendment to Legal Services Agreement 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

"FIRM" 

Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC 

By: ____________ _ 
Michael G. Colantuono, President 

Date: 
-------------

Page 2 of 2 



AGENDA ITEM# 5.C 

EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND APPLICABLE BILLING RATES 

I. GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES

A. GENERAL RATES. The general legal services to be provided by the Firm to

the Commission shall include the following: 

1. Provide routine legal assistance, advice and consultation to the

Commission and its staff relating to general public law issues, potential tort liability and 

risk management. 

2. Prepare and review legal opinions, ordinances, resolutions,

agreements and related documents. 

3. Attend such meetings of the Commission and such other bodies of

the Commission as may from time to time be specified by the Commission. 

4. Monitor pending state and federal legislation and regulations, and

new case law, as appropriate. 

5. Perform such other or additional general legal services as may be

requested by the Commission or the Commission's Executive Officer. 

legal counsel. 

6. Administer contracts that the Commission may have with other

7. Provide attorneys on-site for office hours as requested by the

Executive Officer or the Commission. 

The general legal services described here shall be provided at $250 per hour regardless 

of which professional of the Firm provides those services. 

B. TASK BILLING. Upon request by Commission, Firm will propose flat-fee

amounts to cover special projects defined above or specific tasks under Sections II and 

III below. When such task, flat-fee arrangements have been agreed upon, they shall 

control over the rates provided by this Agreement. 

Exhibit A 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

1 



II. LITIGATION SERVICES

A. The Firm will provide litigation services to the Commission in any and all

matters assigned by the Commission, except as delegated pursuant to paragraph 11 of 

the Agreement, or as otherwise agreed in writing by the Firm and the Commission. 

B. The litigation services specified in paragraph A shall be billed at the

regular hourly rates of the attorneys and other professionals providing such services at 

the time those services are provided to a maximum of $325 per hour, or as otherwise 

agreed pursuant to paragraph LB above. The non-retainer rates in effect on the Effective 

Date of this Agreement are set forth in Exhibit B. 

III. OTHER SPECIALIZED LEGAL SERVICES

The specialized legal services ( excluding those described above) to be provided 

by the Firm to the Commission shall include the following: 

matters. 

Advice. 

1. Legal services pertaining to labor, employment and personnel

2. Advice regarding taxes, assessments, fees and other Financial

3. Environmental Legal Services including review of negative

declarations, environmental impact reports and other project-level environmental 

documentation on projects for which Commission is the lead agency. 

4. Real Estate and Eminent Domain Services including review of

escrow documents, title reports and contracts of sale. 

5. Insurance Coverage Services, such as advice and representation

regarding coverage disputes with a risk pool or insurance provider. 

6. Water Law Services involving the interpretation, enforcement, or

defense of water rights. 

Commission. 

Exhibit A 

7. Such other specialized services as may be required by the

Error! Unknown document property name. 

2 



AGENDA ITEM# 5.C 

The specialized legal services specified in this paragraph shall be billed at the regular 

hourly rates of the professionals providing such services at the time those services are 

provided, up to a maximum of $325 per hour. The non-retainer rates in effect on the 

Effective Date of this Agreement are set forth in Exhibit B. 

Exhibit A 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

3 




































































	Scanned LAFCO Packet June 5, 2023
	March 1 2023 Minutes.2
	Scanned LAFCO Packet June 5, 2023
	Scanned LAFCO Packet June 5, 2023
	Scanned LAFCO Packet June 5, 2023
	Scanned LAFCO Packet June 5, 2023
	Scanned LAFCO Packet June 5, 2023



